




































































































































 
 

Office of the City Controller, Charlie DeBrunner 
Martin Luther King City Government Center 

10 N. Second St. 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 

 

August 11, 2022 
 
Audry Carter, Chairperson 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for the City of Harrisburg 
 
Re: Mayor’s 2022 Five-Year Financial Plan for the City of Harrisburg 
 
Dear Chair Carter: 
 
Based on the Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority’s request, I have reviewed the 
Administration’s 2022 Five-Year Financial Plan and agree with the historical data presented 
in the report along with the assumptions contained in the revenue and expenditure 
projections. 
 
As you may be aware, I have been a long-time advocate of paying off the Ambac liability in 
full and this Plan incorporates just that.  This fiscal year (2022) will be noteworthy in that the 
City’s 1997 General Obligation Bonds and Notes will be paid off and if the Administration is 
also financially able to payoff the Ambac liability this year, the City will free up approximately 
$8.65 million of additional General Fund expenditure appropriation going forward.  This 
added fiscal flexibility allows the City to have significant projected General Fund budgetary 
surpluses throughout the five-year projection period while also allowing for future debt service 
when the City eventually reenters the debt market.  I believe the City’s 2022 Five-Year 
Financial Plan portrays an optimistic and realistic future for the citizens of this City. 
 
I would also like to take this opportunity to thank the Administration for their collaborative 
approach to producing this report.  Staff from the Administration’s Bureau of Financial 
Management worked diligently on the Five-Year Plan and coordinated with the Controller’s 
Office on multiple financial schedules.  We have worked closely with the staff of the new 
Administration on numerous instances and this report is no exception. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Charlie DeBrunner 
Controller 
 
 
cc: Wanda R.D. Williams, Mayor 
 Dan Hartman, Business Administrator 
 Marita Kelley, MPA, Finance Director 



 
The Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority 

for Harrisburg 
922 N 3rd Street 

Harrisburg, PA 17102 
 
October 3, 2022 
 
The Honorable Wanda R.D. Williams 
Mayor, City of Harrisburg 
Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Government Center 
10 N. Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 
 
Re: Approval of the 2022 City of Harrisburg Five-Year Financial Plan 
 
Dear Mayor Williams: 
 
On Wednesday, September 28, 2022, the Board of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for 
Harrisburg (the Authority) approved a final revision of the 2022 City of Harrisburg Five-Year 
Financial Plan, pursuant to Act 124 of 2018, Section 209, Financial Plan of the Assisted City. This draft 
was dated, September 20, 2022, as it contained some corrections pointed out at the August 31st 
meeting, and represents the satisfactory 2022 submission for the City of Harrisburg. 
 
The following are a summary of the Board’s continued items of focus: 
 
1 – American Rescue Plan Act Funding: The final amended and restated plan document included by 
reference the Administration’s proposed uses for the balance of the American Rescue Plan Act 
(ARPA) funding. City Council will be working with you to approve your plan for use of this money. 
Throughout that process, the Authority Board would like to stay involved in both the discussion of 
uses as well as the benchmarking of the value and benefit of these proposed projects. As you have 
stated, it is important that the citizens of Harrisburg receive the maximum value from these 
investments. 
 
2 – Approval of an Economic Development Strategic Plan: The Board looks forward to working 
cooperatively on the approval of the plan as well as its implementation. Economic development 
policies and activities can strategically position the City to build long-term economic growth. 
 



Correspondence to Mayor Williams re: 2022 Five-Year Plan 

3 – Stability of the Neighborhood Services Fund: The Board appreciates the efforts of the City to 
measure and plan for this important part of the City’s budget. We remain interested in the policies 
and procedures surrounding the collection of outstanding receivables as well as the proper 
distribution of expenses associated with the intermunicipal trash collection and the overhead 
expenses provided by the General Fund. 
 
4 – Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Fund: While we are grateful that the project to establish 
the OPEB Trust Fund is underway, the Authority Board is concerned that the establishment of the 
fund has overshadowed the significant unfunded liability of Other Post-Employment Benefits 
themselves. No consequential plan for limiting this liability was ever proposed. Further, the actuarial 
value of these liabilities is daunting. As you are well aware the establishment if the Trust is a 
requirement of Act 124. 
 
5 – Real Estate Tax Yield and Payments in Lieu of Taxes: The Board has been concerned that the 
economy and the value of commercial real estate has dropped leading to a potential future decrease 
in the yield from real estate taxes. Furthermore, we believe more can be done to encourage tax-
exempt property owners as well as the Commonwealth to support the operations of the City despite 
their tax-exempt status through renegotiated Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTs). We would like to 
encourage the City to obtain reasonable contributions from such entities given that Harrisburg is 
both the state capital and the seat of Dauphin County. 
 
6 – Headcount of Personnel: The Board is concerned with the inability to hire and retain qualified 
professionals for key positions in City government. We recognize that many municipalities are 
having similar challenges and encourage the Administration to take proactive and innovative steps 
including improved recruitment, hiring/onboarding, and professional development to address these 
challenges. 
 
7 – Yield from Parking Garage Ground Leases: The Board noted in the plan document that the 
Administration hopes revenue from the ground leases for the City parking garages may eventually 
return. We are concerned that the parking garage scheme did not materialize as planned and further 
that the Commonwealth and the City’s partners in the scheme are struggling. Just as with 
commercial real estate tax revenue, increased vacancy among office buildings may necessitate a re-
evaluation and re-consideration of the original plans for the City’s parking garages. 
 
In conclusion, the 2022 plan, as submitted, meets the needs of the City and requirements of Act 124 
and is positioned to guide and influence the 2023 budget process, already underway.  Thank you for 
the opportunity to present these observations and comments to the City of Harrisburg in response 
to the Five-Year Financial Plan, as presented September 20, 2022. 
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It is our pledge that we will continue to work collaboratively with your Administration and wish to 
acknowledge specifically Chief of Staff and Business Administrator Dan Hartman, Director of 
Finance Marita Kelley, and Accounting Manager Bryan McCutcheon for their outstanding work on 
behalf of the City of Harrisburg.  
 
Please feel free to reach out to me if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Audry Carter, Chair 
 
c.c.  Authority Members 

Danielle Bowers, President, City Council, City of Harrisburg 
 Ausha Green, Vice-President, City Council, City of Harrisburg 
 Charlie DeBrunner, Controller, City of Harrisburg 
 Dan Miller, Treasurer, City of Harrisburg 

Dan Hartman, Chief of Staff and Business Administrator, City of Harrisburg 
Marita Kelley, Director of Finance, City of Harrisburg 

 




